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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

CASE NO. 15-61034-CIV-COHN/STRAUSS 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff 

v. 

MAIL TREE INC., et al., 

Defendants. 
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2. The Complaint charges that Defendants participated in deceptive acts or 

practices in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45, in the advertising, 

marketing, promoting, offering for sale, or selling of Prize Promotions. 

3. Stipulating Defendant neither admits nor denies any of the allegations in 

the Complaint, except as specifically stated in this Order. Only for purposes of this 

action, Stipulating Defendant admits the facts necessary to establish jurisdiction. 

4. Stipulating Defendant waives any claim that he may have under the Equal 

Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2412, concerning the prosecution of this action 

through the date of this Order, and agrees to bear his own costs and attorney fees. 

5. Stipulating Defendant waives all rights to appeal or otherwise challenge or 

contest the validity of this Order. 

DEFINITIONS 

For the purpose of this Order, the following definitions apply: 

1. “Defendants” means all of the Individual Defendants and the Corporate 

Defendants, individually, collectively, or in any combination. 

a. “Corporate Defendants” means Mail Tree Inc.; Michael McKay 
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Directory Center (NDC), and Priority Information Exchange (PIE), and their successors 

and assigns. 

b. “Individual Defendants” means Matthew Pisoni, Marcus Pradel, 

John Leon, and Victor Ramirez. 

c. “Stipulating Defendant” means Marcus Pradel. 

2. “Prize Promotion” means: (1) a sweepstakes or other game of chance; 

or (2) an oral or written express or implied representation that a person has won, has 

been selected to receive, or may be eligible to receive, or enter a contest to receive, a 

prize or purported prize, whether in the form of money, merchandise, or anything of 

value. 

ORDER 

I. BAN ON PRIZE PROMOTION 

IT IS ORDERED that Stipulating Defendant, whether acting directly or indirectly, 

is permanently restrained and enjoined from advertising, marketing, promoting, offering 

for sale, or selling, or assisting in the advertising, marketing, promoting, offering for sale, 

or selling, of any Prize Promotion. 

II. PROHIBITION AGAINST MISREPRESENTATIONS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Stipulating Defendant, Stipulating Defendant’s 

officers, agents, and employees, and all other persons in active concert or participation 

with any of them, who receive actual notice of this Order, whether acting directly or 

indirectly, in connection with the advertising, marketing, promoting, offering for sale, 

sale, or provision of any good or service, are permanently restrained and enjoined from 

misrepresenting or assisting others in misrepresenting, expressly or by implication, any 
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C. From each individual or entity to which Stipulating Defendant delivered a 

copy of this Order, Stipulating Defendant must obtain, within 30 days, a signed and 

dated acknowledgment of receipt of this Order. 

VI. COMPLIANCE REPORTING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Stipulating Defendant make timely submissions 

to the Commission: 

A. One year after entry of this Order, Stipulating Defendant must submit a 

compliance report, sworn under penalty of perjury.  Stipulating Defendant must:  (1) 

identify all telephone numbers and all physical, postal, email and Internet addresses, 

including all residences; (2) identify all business activities, including any business for 

which Stipulating Defendant performs services whether as an employee or otherwise 

and any entity in which Stipulating Defendant has any ownership interest; (3) describe 

in detail Stipulating Defendant’s involvement in each such business, including title, role, 

responsibilities, participation, authority, control, and any ownership; (4) identify the 

primary physical, postal, and email address and telephone number, as designated 

points of contact, which representatives of the Commission may use to communicate 

with Stipulating Defendant; (5) identify all of Stipulating Defendant’s businesses by all of 

their names, telephone numbers, and physical, postal, email, and Internet addresses; 

(6) describe the activities of each business, including the goods and services offered, 
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DEbrief@ftc.gov or sent by overnight courier (not the U.S. Postal Service) to: Associate 

Director for Enforcement, Bureau of Consumer Protection, Federal Trade Commission, 

600 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Washington, DC 20580.  The subject line must begin: 

FTC v. Mail Tree Inc., et al., FTC Matter No. X150041. 

VII. RECORDKEEPING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Stipulating Defendant must create certain 

records for 10 years after entry of the Order, and retain each such record for 5 years. 

Specifically, Stipulating Defendant for any business that Stipulating Defendant, 

individually or collectively with any other Defendants, is a majority owner or controls 

directly or indirectly, must create and retain the following records: 

A. Accounting records showing the revenues from all goods or services sold; 

B. Personnel records showing, for each person providing services, whether 

as an employee or otherwise, that person’s: name, addresses, telephone numbers, job 

title or position, dates of service, and (if applicable) the reason for termination; 

C. Records of all consumer complaints and refund requests, whether 

received directly or indirectly, such as through a third party, and any response; 

D. All records necessary to demonstrate full compliance with each provision 

of this Order, including all submissions to the Commission; and 

E. A copy of each unique advertisement or other marketing material. 

VIII. COMPLIANCE MONITORING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for the purpose of monitoring Stipulating 

Defendant’s compliance with this Order: 
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FOR DEFENDANT MARCUS PRADEL: 

Date: 
MARCUS PRADEL 
Defendant, Pro Se 
789 W. Yamato Road, Apt. 122 
Boca Raton, Florida 33431 
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